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REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

for the
Migration of IOM’s Intranet Portal and Document management System

to the Microsoft SharePoint 2010 Platform
BID BULLETIN
Addendum No. 2
This Addendum No. 02 is issued to clarify information regarding the Request for Proposal issued to prospective Providers on March 8, 2012.
A. 
SECTION II.  INSTRUCTIONS TO SERVICE PROVIDERS/CONSULTING FIRMS
Q1:
Submission process indicated in page 4: will the submission be on physical copy only 2 copies – 
one original and one copy for each technical and financial proposal? Or will emails be allowed?
A:
Submission of Bid Proposals shall be allowed. There should be a separate file for the Technical and 
Financial Proposal. Both files should be in PDF format. Submission via email should follow the 
same deadline – on or before March 28, 2012 at 2:00PM Manila Time.
Q2:
On page 10 item 6.1.a on the statement: “For assignment of the staff, the proposal shall be based 
on the number of professional staff-months estimated by the firm, no alternative professional staff 
shall be proposed.” Can you elaborate on this? 
A:
This means the bid proposal shall be prepared and must be completedon the basis of the number 
of proposed staff. No substitution is allowed unless there is prior approval from IOM. The qualifications of the Staff proposed should be equal or more than the qualification of the staff originally assigned in the Project.
Q3:
On page 10, on item 6.1.c on the statement: “Proposed professional staff must, at a minimum, 
have the experience of at least five years, preferably working under conditions similar to those 
prevailing in the country of the assignment.”

Are we referring to 5 years as a consultant? Consultant on the same technology(sharepoint) in 5 
years? What if a majority of the consultants to be deployed do not meet this particular 
requirement? What would be the impact?
A:
Yes. The Company must be existing in the business minimum of 5 years. The Primary Consultants 
must have experience working for same technology for minimum 5 years. 
Q4:
On page 10 on 6.2.a, this requires for the tech profiles, implementation experiences as well as the 
project details such as the contract amount. What is the implication if we won’t be able to provide 
contact amount due to the confidentiality clauses we have with the client on this particular 
information?
A:
This information is required in the evaluation of the Consultant’s capacity. If this is not provided 

then we have nothing to evaluate.
Q5:
On page 10 6.2.c, regarding the approach, methodology and work plan; for the work plan will a 
project timeline suffice or are we looking at a Microsoft project file for this item? Or were looking 
at TPF-4 only?
A:
No need for a Microsoft Project; an excel file with the tasks is fine. Please see also TPF-5, TPF7 and 

TPF -8
Q6:
On page 11 on 6.2.f on 
a) Professional and support staff – do we mean professional to pertain to the implementation team while support team will be the team who will handle the support after project implementation 
A:
Professional Staff means the Primary Consultant and Support means those Staff providing 

support to the Consultants 

b) Location of development work, what is IOM’s preferred set-up here will work be done onsite at client premises or can this be offsite?


A:
Off site work can be considered on a case by case basis subject to getting justifications and 


assurance about data protection and regular project update visibility for IOM
Q7:
On page 11 on item 7.2 on this statement: “All items and activities described in the Technical 
proposal must be priced separately; activities and items in the Technical Proposal but not priced 
shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities or items”, what do we mean by 
this?

A:
It is assumed that those items/tasks in the Technical Proposal with no price is included in other 

items or activities.

Q8
On page 11 on item 7.5, on this statement “Consulting Firm is expected to keep available the 
professional staff for the assignment,” do we mean to say that we would need to make sure that 
the signed personnel whose CV’s we provided are available by an early May start date? 
- Would it be possible instead to have the consultants profiles and signed CV’s and then if they are no longer free then we just replace them with the same skillset of consultant? 

A:
Yes, subject to IOM’s prior approval

- It would be difficult for a service provider to bench a consultant for 3 months since it will have impact on the utilization and experience of the consultant

- will we need to do the same process of CV’s, signed and submitted for our support staff as well?
A:
Yes
Q9:
On page 13 on the scoring process 10.4, please find our clarifications below: 

a) For item (i) what kind of experiences are we looking at similar technology implementation? Team composition? Challenges being addressed? Client satisfaction?

A: 
Please refer to the TOR in the RFP.

b) For the key professional staff qualifications, can you advise on the sub criteria on the following: 
i. General qualifications – is this years of experience? Technology exposure? Certifications and trainings undertaken? 
A: 
Yes

ii. Adequacy for the assignment – will this pertain to number of projects undertaken? What else do we mean by this?

c) Can we have a sample of the computations so we can determine the actual weighing and scoring?

A:
This is basic and we leave it to you to do that.
Q10:
Can we have a sample completed form of FPF 3, 4 and 5?
A:
We cannot provide this.
B. 
SECTION V.  TERMS OF REFERENCE
Q1:
Which applications use scripts to automate business processes? What type of business 
processes are these? Complexity levels?

A:
There are currently 7 custom scripts and 1 Workflow. The scripts update different 
document and Folder properties, 1 updates Document Security & 1 that creates a Custom Object.

The Workflow is used to automate the Project Tracking Number of the Project Folder. Its only function is to look-up from an Oracle DB and update the information on the Project Folder. The workflow is assessed at low complexity.

Q2: 
What is the total number of pages/sub-pages of the Portal site to be migrated?
A:
10 Pages

Q3: 
What is the total number of pages/sub-pages of the Intranet site to be migrated?
A:
300 Pages

Q4: 
How is Stored Searches configured? Are Stored Searches configured per user?

A:
Out of the box Filenet search designer tool is used. Searches are configured based on group 
membership

Q5: 
Are we going to include file version history in the FileNet migration?
A:
Multiple versions / version history of the documents are to be maintained.
Q6: 
What type of Custom Object is created whenever a project folder is created?
A:
Only 1 class of custom objects are used. This custom object holds additional information on a 
project but is only intended to be shared within selected groups.

Q7: 
What is the growth projection of the content annually?
A:
Estimated at about 20,000 documents per year

Q8: 
What software version of Google Search Appliance is IOM currently using?
A:
Version 6.0.0 G32 (Note: The appliance firmware may be upgraded to a later version)

Q9: 
How much content from FileNet are we migrating to the SharePoint 2010 Platform?
A:
135,500+  documents/items,  around 55GB total content size and around 600MB database size

Q10: 
Please confirm if contents of Filenet DBs which are currently in Oracle 9i will be migrated to MS 
SQL server.  Will this be part of the scope of the project?

A:
Yes.

Q11: 
Please confirm extent of IOM team involvement in the set up of the Development and Production Environments. Can the Service Provider assume that it will be expected to be involved only at the stage of installation of Sharepoint 2010 Platform and its components? 

A:
The vendor will install and configure all of the SharePoint infrastructure. IOM Will provide 
Hardware platform, Software licenses and media
Q12: 
Is IOM licensed for SharePoint Standard or Enterprise? How many users?  

A:
IOM will provide / procure required SharePoint server and client licenses. Estimated number of 
users is 5000 for Intranet

Q13: 
In the RFP it was highlighted that IOM prefers to use the Google Search Appliance, would it be 
possible to use FAST Search for SharePoint?

A:
Not within the scope of the current project

Q14: 
The intent to migrate from Java, Filenet to SharePoint 2010 is mainly due to what reason?

A:
Alignment to corporate strategy.

Q15: 
Based on the RFP, we will only be doing work on the development environment. Will the IOM 
team be the one to deploy the solution to the QA and Production environment?

A:
Please refer Paragraph 3.7 of RFP.
Q16: 
According the RFP we will be migrating the content from their production environment to the 
development environment. Can we use 3rd party tools to migrate content? And should this be part of 
the proposal as well? 

A:
The choices are left to the vendors. The project is envisaged as a turnkey solution for IOM Intranet 
and FileNet migration (functionalities) to SharePoint.

Q17: 
One of the areas that we are expected to deliver is to conduct SharePoint 2010 training for their 
End Users, Developers and IT Pros. Would it be possible to recommend our training partners to do 
this? 

A:
Yes. The choices are left to the vendors as long as the training is delivered by authorized training 
providers.

Q18: 
Is the IML website (public facing) one of the current applications that will be migrated to 
Sharepoint 
platform? Since this is a public facing website, public facing license for Sharepoint would be 
required. 

A:
IML contents are currently in Filenet and are to be migrated to SharePoint repositories without 
loss of IML Website functionalities. Required SharePoint licenses are to be advised to IOM and 
IOM will provide the licenses.

Q19: 
If the IML website will be migrated, is corporate site branding included in the scope? 

A:
Only retain existing corporate branding. No site re-design is envisaged.

Q20: 
The RFP says they have some scripts to migrate particularly on handling business process 
automation. On a high level, what business processes are automated by these scripts? 

A:
There are currently 7 custom scripts and 1 Workflow. The scripts update different document and 
Folder properties, 1 update Document Security & 1 that creates a Custom Object.

The Workflow is used to automate the Project Tracking Number of the Project Folder. It’s only 
function is to look-up from an Oracle DB and update the information on the Project Folder.

Q21:
Are provisions for Business continuity required (high availability and disaster recovery)? 

A:
Full-fledged disaster recovery solution is not within the scope. High availability features like load 
balancing and fail over of critical components may be suggested / recommended as an option 
while designing the solution.

Q22: 
At a high level, is there an estimated number of users?

A:
About 5,000 for Intranet 

Q23: 
Will the users be from different locations / domains?

A:
Intranet is accessible from IOM offices worldwide. The IOM data enter is in Manila. There are two AD 
Domains (branches) under a single AD Tree

Q24: 
In the RFP, there is a template for a Services Agreement that has to be signed between Microsoft 
and IOM. Is it possible to use the Microsoft template instead?

A:
Microsoft template may be acceptable with permission from IOM Legal department.
Q25: 
What is the size of existing document repository?
A:
135,500+ documents/items, around 55GB total content size and around 600MB database size

Q26: 
What are the different document/file formats stored in the current DMS and what is the average 
size of each document currently stored?

A:
Office Documents, PDF, Images (Tiff, jpeg), XMLs, text files, etc. Technically, there is no restriction 
in what file format is stored/ uploaded. Document sizes varies form s few hundred kB to a few MB

Q27: 
Do we need to migrate the internet website (International Migration Law website) to SharePoint 
or we just need to integrate the existing to SharePoint portal for DMS search and access ? 

A:
IML contents are currently stored in Filenet and are to be migrated to SharePoint repositories 
without loss of IML Website functionalities. Required SharePoint licenses are to be advised to IOM 
and IOM will provide the licenses.

Q28: 
Is IOM is looking for portal in three different languages?
A:
Yes, in English, French and, Spanish.

Q29: 
Please refer to page 30: Point 4 (d): Please provide a brief idea about the number and type of 
workflow used in IOM intranet portal?

A:
There are currently 7 custom scripts and 1 Workflow. The scripts update different document and 
Folder properties, 1 update Document Security & 1 that creates a Custom Object.

The Workflow is used to automate the Project Tracking Number of the Project Folder. Its only function is to look-up from an Oracle DB and update the information on the Project Folder. They have low complexity.
Q30: 
How many HTML pages need to be migrated?
A:
About 310

Q31: 
How are IOM’s public facing sites managed currently?

A:
By internal IOM staff locally at Manila. Production and pre-production environments are 
maintained and publishing is controlled.

Q32: 
Is there TMG/DMZ in picture?

A:
A DMZ and Reverse Proxy Exists. Intranet servers are not in the DMZ.

Q33: 
Where is the internet application hosted; within domain or outside of domain?

A:
The Internet application is hosted in Manila, in the IOM data enter. Intranet application is hosted 
in the Domain

Q34: 
For the existing websites, will there be:

Redesign or re-branding of the websites? 
A:
No. 
Re-architecture of the information in the websites?  Or is it a straight-up migration - no changes in the design, no changes in the information architecture, content, etc.? 
A:
The system needs to be set up in way that allows easy changes, for instance, creating new 

main sections, moving pages from one section to another, etc.

Are there custom java components and/or applications created as part of these websites? If so, please enumerate and describe the functions of each.

A:
The intranet website has custom main java components / modules (Search Module and 

Browse Module)  that interacts with Filenet            

Q35: 
Is there any application integration required in any of the existing websites? If so, please 
enumerate and describe the integrations required and the applications/systems/databases being 
integrated with.

A:
Currently the java application (Intranet website) connects directly to the Filenet via FileNet APIs.  It also interacts with LDAP for authentication.  The Sword Connector needed for the Google Search Appliance connects directly to the Oracle database as well as FileNet.
Q36: 
Are the websites multilingual? If so, how many language variations are there?

A:
Mostly English at the moment but French and Spanish sections also exist.
Q37: 
For the existing document management system in FileNet, How many documents are we looking 
at migrating? How big is the content database size?

A:
135,500+ documents/items,  around 55GB total content size and around 600MB database size

Q38: 
What are the existing templates in FileNet that need to be migrated? Please enumerate, indicate 
file type and describe the functions of each.

	Number of templates
	Template Type
	Purpose

	70+
	Document Entry Templates
	Serves as a shortcut/template for creation of documents. This pre-assigns some properties such as location of folder, initial values on some index fields, etc.

	10
	Folder Entry Templates
	Similar to Document entry template, only used for Folder Creation.

	20+
	PDF Publishing
	Renders a copy of documents into PDF

	20+
	Default Publishing
	Renders another copy of that document 

	440+
	Search Templates
	customized Templates for different Document, folder and custom object classes. Each has different criteria, search location, result displays, etc.


Q39: 
What custom objects were created for FileNet? Please enumerate and describe the functions of 

each.

A:
Only 1 class of custom objects. This custom object holds additional information on a project but is 
only intended to be shared within selected groups.

Q40: 
Will there be approval and/or review workflows that need to be migrated? Please enumerate, and 
provide diagrams for each process. It would be greatly appreciated if the workflow diagrams are 
also included.

A:
Currently, there are no approval workflows

Q41: 
Was there any application integration done in FileNet? If so, please enumerate and describe the 
integrations required, and the applications/systems/databases being integrated with.

A:
MS Office integration is feasible, but this feature is not widely used. This allows users to update 
MS office contents without going through the entire front-end of FileNet.

Oracle DB integration is used to hold some records to automate some properties of Project Folder 
Information. Some are look-ups for the equivalent country codes and counters for project 
numbers.

Q42: 
Does the system need to be able to handle multilingual searches? What languages?

A:
Some properties (such as Project Names, Document Title, etc) are encoded in non-english 
languages such as Spanish, French, Arabic, etc. They should be searchable when using the same 
language criteria.

Q43: 
Do versions need to be migrated?

A:
As much as possible, Yes

Q44:
For Project Management and Documentation Requirements, What are the documentation 
required by IOM?

A:
Documentations as per project management methodology followed including test reports, issues 
register, risk register etc. Additionally site specific documents covering systems configurations and 
any specific SOPs needed to maintain the systems are expected.

Q45: 
Does IOM have Windows Active Directory in place?

A:
Yes, in Windows 2008

Q46: 
What is the mail server system?

A:
MS Exchange 2010

Q47: 
How many users, total, for the different websites and the document management system?

A:

Intranet is accessed by about 5000 IOM staff members who also have access to FileNet. Internet 
sites is available globally.

Q48: 
For the DMS, will there be external users accessing the system? If so, do they have Active 
Directory credentials?

A:
Yes, there are external users (governing bodies). They do not use AD credentials.

Q49: 
Does IOM have standards for publishing and hosting websites? Does IOM plan to host the 
websites and the DMS in the same SharePoint environment? Ideally, they should be hosted in 
different environments for security.

A:
Website and DMS are to be hosted on different machines. Some internal processes and standards 
are defined for Websites hosting. IOM can share its data protection manuals with selected vendor 
if IOM Legal department consider it necessary.

Q50: 
For Post-Implementation Support, does IOM require 24x7 support?
A:
After defect free deployment of the solution IOM doesn’t require 24 x 7 for the newly developed 
and deployed solution. However, IOM may negotiate for telephonic, on-site or remote support with the solution provider outside of the current project.

Q51: 
Does IOM have Google Search Appliance experts or SMEs who will be able to assist the 
implementation team with Google Search Appliance integration with SharePoint?

A:
IOM currently have support agreements with Google. Onsite activities are carried out by IOM staff. 
The same resources will be available to selected vendor during project phases.

Q52: 
Does IOM need multilingual support in the SharePoint sites?

A:
Yes; English, French and, Spanish.

Q53: 
What percentage for penalties are we looking at for delays and non-performance?

A:
As per negotiated contractual terms

Q54: 
For the Jahia ECM platform - is there the capability to export to a File Share the content and/or the 
meta data?

A:
Intranet and DMS are not currently built using Jahia.

Q55: 
For the Filenet platform, will exporting the metadata be part of our scope?

A:
Vendor should export existing contents for importing into new solution. There’s a Filenet tool that 
can export metadata into an XML form, compatibility with Sharepoint is not established by IOM. 
These metadata are also in the Oracle DB and vendors will have access to it during project 
implementation phase.

Q56: 
Will the existing document hierarchy and information architecture be retained or will there be a 
need for document restructuring, etc.?

A:
They should be retained so that users are not subject to major changes. Restructuring should be 
reasonable enough if cannot be avoided.

Q57: 
For the existing scripts automating business processes, how many processes will need to be 
migrated? Please provide sample forms and workflow diagrams for each.

A:
There are currently 7 custom scripts: 4 that update different document properties, 1 updates 
Folder Properties, 1 update Document Security & 1 that creates a Custom Object.

There is currently only 1 Workflow. This is used to automate the Project Tracking Number of the Project Folder. Only function is to look-up from an Oracle DB and updates the information on the Project Folder.

Q58: 
For item 9, bullet 3 page 36: 

a) Can we propose trainings that lead to certification for SharePoint? 
A:
Yes

b) What if we have customized trainings that the official curriculum cannot address? 
A:
Minimum coverage must be as specified in the Microsoft curriculum

c) Are we limited to the identified trainings in the RFP? 
A:
Training identified in the RFP is required.

d) For the content editors, we are checking this currently and validating if there is such a course? If IOM is visible on this, would it be possible to know the course code? 
A:
 If no content editor training is available, IOM can re-visit this requirement.
Q59: 
For Search, its mentioned that there are two types of searches – Filenet and Google.

a) Is our assumption correct that the filenet component can be replaced by Sharepoint?
A:
That is the project and RFP is about.

b) But that the Google part must remain the same?
A:
The Migrated solution shall have Google search appliance integrated for search 
functionality irrespective of native search functionality of the platform used.

c) For this item, will IOM provide resources knowledgeable in Google for the interface?

A:
IOM currently have support agreements with Google. Onsite activities are carried out by 
IOM staff. The same resources will be available to selected vendor during project phases

Q60: 
Validation: In terms of scope, is our understanding correct that this comprises of the following:

Implementation of sharepoint 2012?

Migration of current content for 6 site?

Use of google search interface for the enterprise search component 

Training – transition from implementation team to IOM team?

Training – technical that leads to certification?

Support for 1 year email and phone with possibility of onsite work if needed?

A:
Scope and deliverables are included in the RFP.

Q61: 
Located on page 35, item#6:As applicable, carry out the system integration of the portal, intranet, 
document management system, Google Search Appliance, Google Connector, and IML website 
and verify the integrity and functionality of all components

Clarification/question: Is GSA a hard requirement? Can SharePoint Enterprise Search be used 
instead as the main search engine/feature? There are indeed federated search connectors for 
Google anyway which can be used if they want to display Google-based search results.

A:
The Migrated solution shall have Google search appliance integrated for search functionality 
irrespective of native search functionality of the platform used
Q62: 
In page 35, would IOM be able to provide a description/samples regarding item “d” indicated 
below: 


Migrate the existing contents of the IOM intranet, portal, FileNet and International Migration Law 
website (the Current Applications) to the SharePoint 2010 Platform development environment.

Deliverables:

Existing scripts automating business processes migrated to the SharePoint 2010 Platform development environment
A:
FileNet related scripts are available with IOM.

C.
SECTION VI – CONTRACT FOR SERVICES
Q1:
Will we already submit this section along with the advance payment or will this happen only with 
the chosen vendor?
A:
The Contract shall be discussed with the Selected Provider.
Q2:
For 4.1 a and b on payment process, clarifications include: 
a. Are we looking at any of the two options – either we go to 10-80-10 with a mobilization fee of 10% upon sign off once we provide the bank guarantee?
A:
Yes

b. What is the amount of the bank guarantee? Also 10%?
A:
Yes

c. Will the final 10% be provided once we have the system in production and is considered live?
A:
10% will be paid upon final acceptance of the Project and upon submission of required 


documents.
Q3:
For item 4.2 on this statement “The Service Provider shall invoice IOM upon completion of all the 
services”we’d like to propose instead “shall invoice IOM based on the payment schedule in 4.1”?

A:
This is fine. Invoice shall be submitted based on payment schedule in 4.1 of the Contract.
Q4:
For item 4.3 on this statement “Payments shall become due [insert number of days] days after 
IOM’s receipt and approval of the invoice” would the invoice have another approval or only 
approval of payment? Milestone based invoicing will already include sign off per milestone 
deliverables by the project lead of IOM.  

A:
This is approval of payment.
Q5:
For item 9.1 can we propose the underlined section” If, for reason fully attributable to Service 
Provider, the Service Provider does not carry out or is not able to carry out its obligations under 
this…
A:
This is a template issued by IOM’s Legal Department.
Q6:
For item 14.1 on this statement “The Service Provider shall guarantee any work performed under this Agreement for a period of 12 months after final payment” is our understanding correct that the final payment will be made once the system is placed in production and is signed off by the client and that the 12 month warranty is co-terminous with the support engagement?


A:
Final payment shall be made upon IOM’s final acceptance. 12 month warranty shall commence 

after the final acceptance. The Service Provider shall submit a warranty security equivalent to 5% 
of the Contract Amount which shall be either in a form of a bank guaranty or an irrevocable letter 
of credit, valid for 13months. 
Q7:
For item 20.1 on this statement “IOM may terminate this Agreement at any time, in whole or in 
part.” We would like to propose to indicate here at least an advance notification of at least 30-45 
days and that the vendor can also terminate the same in the possibility of breach of contract.
A:
This is a template issued by IOM’s Legal Department.
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